

Sent: 7/23/2026 1:25:14 PM
From: Wendy Stratton Monahan <WMonahan@ci.benicia.ca.us>
To: "Suzie Kaluza" <SKaluza@ci.benicia.ca.us> "Mark Menesini" <MMenesini@ci.benicia.ca.us> "Edward Criado" <ECriado@ci.benicia.ca.us> "Jake Heinemeyer" <JHeinemeyer@ci.benicia.ca.us>
Cc:
Bcc:
Importance: Normal
Subject: Re: Horton PRA -- PR-2026-189
Attachments: [image942328.png](#) , [image495146.png](#) , [image031209.png](#) , [image931456.png](#) , [image378832.png](#) , [image784290.png](#) , [image114802.png](#) , [image320940.png](#) , [image963039.png](#) , [image129430.png](#) , [image392884.png](#) , [image677040.png](#)

I can look in MUNIS for the vendors as soon as I have access to my laptop this afternoon. Honestly, I don't even understand what he is asking for in question 4. I personally haven't received any requests for contract or agreements that allow any access to Flock or community cameras and I certainly haven't processed any. Get [Outlook for iOS](#)



Wendy Stratton Monahan
Senior Management Analyst / PD PI
O
Benicia Police Department
O: 707-746-4306
WMonahan@ci.benicia.ca.us
www.ci.benicia.ca.us/police



From: Suzie Kaluza <SKaluza@ci.benicia.ca.us>
Sent: Thursday, 23 July 2026 13:05:13
To: Mark Menesini <MMenesini@ci.benicia.ca.us>; Edward Criado <ECriado@ci.benicia.ca.us>; Wendy Stratton Monahan <WMonahan@ci.benicia.ca.us>; Jake Heinemeyer <JHeinemeyer@ci.benicia.ca.us>
Subject: Horton PRA -- PR-2026-189

Hi,

Can you please advise if we have any of this information? By tomorrow, if possible.

1. Any contract, purchase order, quote, proposal, or amendment involving Leonardo, Leonardo DRS, Leonardo US Cyber and Security Solutions, ELSAG, or any product marketed as "SignalTrace," dated January 1, 2022 to present.
2. Any communication (email, memo, meeting notes, procurement correspondence) between Benicia PD staff and Leonardo, ELSAG, or any reseller/integrator of SignalTrace or comparable Bluetooth, Wi-Fi, or RFID device-correlation add-ons for automatic license plate reader (ALPR) systems. – **I am requesting an email search from IT.**
3. Any records evaluating, piloting, or considering the addition of Bluetooth, Wi-Fi, or RFID signal collection capability to Benicia's existing Flock Safety ALPR camera network, or to any other camera or sensor infrastructure operated by or on behalf of the City.
4. Any policy, use agreement, data-sharing agreement, or retention schedule specific to device-identifier data (MAC addresses, Bluetooth IDs, Wi-Fi identifiers, RFID tags) as distinct from license plate data.
5. Any records reflecting whether Flock Safety, or any other current City camera vendor, has offered, marketed, or disclosed plans to integrate SignalTrace-style device correlation into products already under contract with the City. – **This should appear in an email search.**

Thanks,
Suzie



Suzie Kaluz
a
Police Records Superviso
r
Benicia Police Department
O: 707-746-4245
SKaluza@ci.benicia.ca.u
s
www.ci.benicia.ca.us/police

